Document Pack
D N
Cyngor Sir Gar

sirgar.llyw.cymru

County Council

TUESDAY, 9 JANUARY 2024

TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE

| HEREBY SUMMON YOU TO ATTEND A MEETING OF THE
STANDARDS COMMITTEE WHICH WILL BE HELD IN THE
CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, CARMARTHEN, SA31 1JP AND
REMOTELY AT 1.30 PM ON TUESDAY, 16TH JANUARY, 2024 FOR
THE TRANSACTION OF THE BUSINESS OUTLINED ON THE
ATTACHED AGENDA

Wendy Walters

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Democratic Officer: Janine Owen
Telephone (direct line): 01267 224030
E-Mail: JanineOwen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

This is a multi-location meeting. Committee members can attend in person at
the venue detailed above or remotely via the Zoom link which is provided
separately.

The meeting can be viewed on the Authority’s website via the following link:-
https://carmarthenshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive,
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP


https://carmarthenshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

9 MEMBERS

MEMBERSHIP:
9 MEMBERS

Independent Members (5)

Mrs Mary Dodd

Ms Caryl Davies
Mrs Daphne Evans
Mrs Julie James
Mr Frank Phillips

o o bh =

Community Committee Member (1)

1. Town Councillor Phillip Rogers

Elected Members of the County Council (3)

1. Councillor Betsan Jones
2. Councillor Rob James
3. Councillor Gareth Thomas

carmarthenshire.gov.wales



AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.
2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTEREST.

3. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 5-8
MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE HELD ON THE
11TH DECEMBER 2023

4. DISPENSATION APPLICATION BY COUNCILLOR ALED DAVIES, 9-18
COUNCILLOR ALUN DAVIES, COUNCILLOR ARWEL DAVIES,
COUNCILLOR MARK HARRIES, COUNCILLOR ANDREW THOMAS

5. DISPENSATION APPLICATION BY COUNCILLOR PETER COMLEY 19-28

6. ANY OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT BY REASON OF
SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES THE CHAIR DECIDES SHOULD BE
CONSIDERED AS A MATTER OF URGENCY PURSUANT TO
SECTION 100B(4)(B) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972.

carmarthenshire.gov.wales



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

MONDAY, 11 DECEMBER 2023

PRESENT: M. Dodd (Chair)

Independent Members (In Person):
D. Evans J. James

Independent Members (Virtually):
C. Davies F. Phillips P. Rogers

Also Present (In Person):

R. Edgecombe, Legal Services Manager
L. Davies, Simultaneous Translator

D. Hall-dJones, Member Support Officer
K. Thomas, Democratic Services Officer

Also Present (Virtually):
E. Evans, Principal Democratic Services Officer

Chamber - County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP and remotely - 2.00 - 3.00 pm
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors B. Jones and G.B.
Thomas.

2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTEREST.
There were no declarations of personal interest.

3. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF
THE COMMITTEE HELD ON THE 19TH OCTOBER 2023.

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the

Standards Committee held on the 19th October, 2023 be signed as a correct
record.

4. ACTIONS UPDATE

The Committee received a report detailing the progress achieved in relation to
the actions, requests or referrals that had emanated from previous meetings.

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the report be received.

5. REVIEW OF DISCIPLINARY HEARING PROCEDURES

Note: These minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting.

P N
Cyngor Sir Gar

Carmarthenshire
County Council

Page 5



The Committee considered a report detailing a revised procedure for the hearing
of Code of Conduct disciplinary proceedings against councillors to that previously
adopted in June 2022 with the changes reflecting the experience gained in
conducting two hearings in 2023. The amended procedure was detailed within
the annexe to the report with the main changes to that previously agreed being:

1. Amending the procedures to reflect that the Councillor may be legally
represented.

2. Make it clear that final hearings will usually be heard in public.

3. Providing for questions to be put to the Ombudsman’s investigating officer
(where that officer is not also a witness in the case)

4. Including a general statement that procedure is intended to provide justice
and fairness both for the councillor who is subject for the investigation and
any other parties involved and that it is also intended to fulfil the wider
public interest of having an open and fair adjudication process.

5. Including a general statement that the Committee may revise the
procedure in any case having regard to the public interest and the need for
a proportionate adjudication process.

The Committee noted that whilst consideration had been given to the proposal
that the initial assessment and pre-hearing review stages should be merged to
reduce the overall length of time involved, that would not be possible for legal
reasons. Instead, that part of the procedure had been streamlined as much as it
could.

The Committee noted that the reference to ‘subject for the investigation’ in the
second paragraph of page 19 should be amended to read ‘subject of the
investigation’.

The Legal Services Manager referred to a query raised on part 6.1 of the
procedure relating to the case being heard in public, and confirmed that he could
amend the wording to clarify that attendance by members of the public at the
hearing would be as ‘observers only’ and that they would not be permitted to
participate in the hearing.

Reference was made to 9.1 of the policy adopted in June 2022 ie: ‘Where
requested the Hearing will be conducted in Welsh in order to comply with
statutory requirements and Welsh Language Standards. A translation service will
be provided for any person attending the Hearing that requires it'. The Committee
was advised that element had not been included within the new procedure. The
Legal Services Manager confirmed the new procedure would be amended to re-
insert that wording.

The Legal services manager in response to a question on the inclusion of timings
under part 4 of the proceedings confirmed that was catered for within 4.2 but that
he could amend the wording of 4.2 to read ‘accurate timings’

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that, subject to the amendments referred to
above, the revised formal procedure for the hearing of Code of Conduct
disciplinary proceedings against councillors in the event of a report being

Note: These minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting.

P N
Cyngor Sir Gar

Carmarthenshire
County Council

Page 6



received from the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales, pursuant to Part
lll of the Local Government Act 2000, be adopted.

GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY

The Committee received a report detailing the number of declarations made by
Carmarthenshire County Councillors in accordance with Paragraph 17 of the
Members Code of Conduct for gifts and hospitality received over the value of £25
subsequent to the local government elections in May 2022. It was noted that 8
declarations had been received.

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the report be received.

PROTOCOL FOR RESOLVING LOW LEVEL MEMBER ON MEMBER CODE
BREACH COMPLAINTS

The Committee received the Council’s protocol for resolving low level member on

member code breach complaints, as adopted on the 10th July 2013, which
typically related to alleged failures to show respect and consideration for others,
as required by paragraph 4(b) of the Code, or the making of vexatious, malicious
or frivolous complaints against other members under paragraph 6(1)(d) of the
Code.

It was noted that the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act imposed a
new duty on Group Leaders to promote high standards of conduct amongst their
group members, which was consistent with the arrangements adopted by the
Council in 2013.

The Legal Services Manager in response to a query on the section of the report
relating to ‘Persistent Breaches’ and on who would be responsible for reporting a
member’s persistent breaches of the Code to the Ombudsman, advised he would
raise that issue with the Council’s Monitoring Officer and inform members of the
outcome of that discussion by e-mail. If, following that advice, members
considered it to be appropriate, a report thereon could be prepared for
consideration by the Committee at its next meeting in March 2024. He also
clarified that any subsequent changes to the protocol would need to be
determined by the Council.

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the report be received.
GROUP LEADERS DUTY

The Committee considered a report on Group Leaders duties under the Local
Government and Elections (Wales) Act and to Welsh Government Guidance and
was advised that subsequent to its meeting held in September 2023 it was
required to agree on the following 4 issues:

1. Any changes to the template to be used by Group Leaders when reporting
to the committee (a copy of which was appended to the report).

2. The deadline by which such reports are to be submitted.
Note: These minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting.

P N
Cyngor Sir Gar

Carmarthenshire
County Council

Page 7



3. The date on which the committee is to meet Group Leaders at the start of
the 2024-2025 municipal year.

4. The criteria against which the performance of the Group Leaders is to be
measured (a copy of which was appended to the report).

The Legal Services Manager referred to points 2 and 3 above and advised that,

provisionally, the 22nd April 2024 had been set aside within the Council’s diary for
the Committee to meet with the Group Leaders and suggested that if the
Committee was agreeable to that date then the deadline for the submission of

their reports would be the 51" April 2024

Reference was made to the use by members of online communications eg face
book what’s app etc in relation to the promotion of civility and respect. The Legal
Services Manager suggested that an appropriate additional line covering that
aspect could be included within both the template and the criteria against which
performance would be measured.

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED

8.1 That the template to be used by Group Leaders be approved
subject to the inclusion of an additional line to address promoting
civility and respect in all on-line communications

8.2 The deadline for the submission of Group Leader reports be the
5th April, 2024.

8.3 That the Committee meet with Group Leaders on the 22"9 April,
2024.

8.4 That the criteria against which the performance of the Group
Leaders was to be measured be approved subject to the inclusion
of an additional criteria relating to the monitoring of on-line
communications.

ANY OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT BY REASON OF SPECIAL
CIRCUMSTANCES THE CHAIR DECIDES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED AS A
MATTER OF URGENCY PURSUANT TO SECTION 100B(4)(B) OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972.

There were no items of urgent business.

CHAIR DATE

Note: These minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting.

P N
Cyngor Sir Gar

Carmarthenshire
County Council

Page 8



STANDARDS COMMITTEE

16™ JANUARY 2024

Agenda Item 4

DISPENSATION APPLICATION BY COUNCILLOR ALED DAVIES,
COUNCILLOR ALUN DAVIES, COUNCILLOR ARWEL DAVIES,
COUNCILLOR MARK HARRIES, COUNCILLOR ANDREW THOMAS

Purpose:

To consider the application and determine whether to grant dispensation

To consider and comment on the following issues:

To decide whether to grant the dispensation application

Reasons:

Clirs Aled Davies, Alun Davies, Arwel Davies, Mark Harris, Andrew Thomas have a personal
and prejudicial interest which would otherwise prevent their participating in this council

business

CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Not Applicable

Directorate
Name of Head of Service:

Linda Rees Jones

Report Author:
Robert Edgecombe

Designations:

Head of Administration and Law

Legal Services Manager

Tel Nos.
01267 224012

LRJones@carmarthenshire.q
ov.uk

01267 224018

riedgeco@carmarthenshire.go
v.uk

PN
Cyngor Sir Gar ’
Carmarthenshire
County Council

Page 9


mailto:LRJones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:LRJones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:rjedgeco@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:rjedgeco@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

STANDARDS COMMITTEE
16™ JANUARY 2024

DISPENSATION APPLICATION BY COUNCILLOR ALED DAVIES,
COUNCILLOR ALUN DAVIES, COUNCILLOR ARWEL DAVIES,
COUNCILLOR MARK HARRIES, COUNCILLOR ANDREW THOMAS

A dispensation application has submitted by the clerk to Manordeilo and Salem Community
Council on behalf of 5 councillors to speak and vote and make written representations in
relation to council business regarding the Bute Energy Towy Usk Energy Scheme

Each councillor would have a personal and prejudicial interest in such business. Details of
their interests are set out in a schedule annexed to the dispensation application, which is
attached to this report.

The Councillors seek dispensation on the following grounds under the Standards Committees
(Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 2001

Regulation 2(d) — the nature of the member’s interest is such that the member’s participation
in the business to which the interest relates would not damage public confidence in the
conduct of the relevant authority’s business.

Regulation 2(f) — the participation of the member in the business to which the interest relates
is justified by the members particular role or expertise.

The application references the fact that these 5 councillors make up 41% of the total
membership of the Council.

The committee has previously granted dispensations to other councillors from Llanwrda
Community Council (1), LIandeilo Town Council (1), Llanarthne Community Council (3) and
Carmarthenshire County Council (3) in respect of similar interests. In each case the
dispensation was granted to speak only or speak and make written representations.

If the committee is minded to grant the request it will need to determine the duration of the
dispensation.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? | NO

PN
Cyngor Sir Gar ’
Carmarthenshire
County Council

Page 10




IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration and Law

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical

& Disorder Management | Implications Assets

and Issues

Equalities

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE
CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: LRJones Head of Administration and Law

1. Scrutiny Committee — not applicable

2.Local Member(s) - not applicable

3.Community / Town Council - not applicable

4.Relevant Partners - not applicable

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations - not applicable

CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO N/A
HOLDER(S) AWARE/CONSULTED

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

There are none.

PN
Cyngor Sir Gar ’
Carmarthenshire
County Council

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



P N

Cyngor Sir Gé)

Carmarthenshire
County Council

APPLICATION TO THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE FOR DISPENSATION
Ptease note that each section MUST be completed. Please refer {o the attached
Guidance Notes when completing the form.

1. YOUR DETAILS

Your fult name: & Lb&ﬁf{,\_ Tome b AIwLS C(M>

Name of your Council:

Manordelio and Sd&.o_m G)Mmm&l\ CD\.Lnu_Q
Email address: ;Sa“\%a\&ui% i\ @ N‘l& wWw\

2. DETAILS OF YOUR INTEREST |

What is the matter under consideration?

Huke (tww&j r\/omcj U, Gmad. Gowwadon v Sduawag

What is your interest in the above matter?
Two B o &muf O?‘LQ_LU;L,OU\ . Q—Q_D_o.sn. son olladed  sduodubo
WL wawes g]o -k'.N‘Q‘ (ounublore WL dfaide JLT\Im U\)\X})’QSY_\S ,

When will the above matter be considered?

No c\o‘KQ. \nas ,Qg_(m_\r\ sn.t

. Are you applying for dispensation to:

Speak only: D Speak and vote: E/

Make written Exercise Executive

Representations B/ Powers []
Page 10f6

February2023 Page 13



3. GROUNDS FOR DISPENSATION |

Regulations issued by the National Assembly for Wales prescribe the circumstances in which
the Standards Committee may grant a dispensation. These grounds for granting a dispensation
are summarised below and are set out in full in the attached guidance notes. On which of the
following grounds do you believe that a dispensation should be granted in this case? Please tick
the appropriate box(es).

» atleast half of the members considering the business has an interest

« my inability to participate would upset the political balance of the meeting to such an
extent that the outcome would be likely to be affected;

« my participation would not damage public confidence

» the interest is common to me and a significant proportion of the general public;

» my participation in the business is justified by my particular role or expertise,

» the business is to be considered by an overview and scrutiny committee and my
interest is not a pecuniary interest, —

. the business relates to the finances or property of a voluntary organisation of whose
management committee or board | am a member and | have no other interest

0 Dﬁma 00

Page 2 of 6
February2023 Page 14



[4. INFORMATION IN SUPPORT OF YOUR APPLICATION

Please set out below the reasons why you consider that the Standards Committee should grant
a dispensation in this case:

(Please note that failure to complete this section will result in the application form being
returned to you)

Te O Lo ’Tgm(j Ul Gnidl Gowne@iowe Sduawa s
o \'\J\(t'XO(' Q)mqm&d@ Wal qu wlwane To | awd weuld
uM(JmL Sin, auas Sa lo  wddedX Aua e NManordald
b Slom Comaadsty Gownid oo, Newby ol
C;SM) R (puncllors  qa

M&w:ma an wlpedT v Wis ()ra()os&, As suu,
Shoud A dLafz&msJ_ﬁo\r\& ol e &chﬁc\ o s‘tﬁd\%m\t
?mfb“r@v\. &L T ngxm\m';" \ (pane® ‘_Ooul)f): ot

be oble T 5({&:& ew L{Tﬂ% J]D e toveliluoudne
‘\(23 &ﬁ;u\cmﬁf wol o e Ko KQQB Ais Gissiong

Page 3 of 6
February2023 Page 15



(please continue on a separate sheet if necessary)

I confirm that the information provided on this form is true to the best of my knowledge. 1 agree
that this application and all the information contained within it may form part of a public report to
the Standards Committee. | request a dispensation in respect of the above matter.

Signed: | ,fllﬂﬂmkﬂb | Date: | ©F / 1A /2023

Please return this form to the Monitoring Officer, Chief Executlve s Department Carmarthenshwe County
Council, County Hall, Carmarthen, SA31 1JP. /| 1

Page 4 of 6
February2023 Page 16



suonejuasaldal usjlIM S3eW O] pasu | dJaym
pue Jo||1puno) se Ajoedes Aw ul pusye

| sBupiestu 21ignd Jo [1BUNo Ajunwiwo?)

au} Jo sbunesw je 9104 pue syedioed o]

‘pue; Aw Buissous Ajqissod suojid

Page 17

SBLIOL | Maipuy

suoljejussa.ldal Usjum axew 0) pesu | sJeym
pue Jojjiounod) se Ajoeded Aw w pusye

1 sBunesw ongnd Jo [1ounod Ajunwwoe?)

ay3 Jo sbujjeaw je 8104 pue sedioned o]

‘pue| Jno Buissouo Aqissod suojAd

SOLLEH YW

suofjejussaldal Usjlim aXeW 0} pesu | aJaym
pue Joj|ipunos) se Ayoeded Aw ul pusje

| sBunesw 21gnd Jo j1ouno)) Ajlunwiwio?)

auy) jo sBuneaul je s10A pue ejedioiued o]

‘Apedoud

Aul Jo uonenjea ay; uo joeduwn ueaiubls B sAeY [imM ) Ueas

aq ued suojAd sy sy "MalA JuaLINo AW uo jodewl [ensiA B eAe
IItm pue Auedoud Aw Jo ejitl B jley uiyiim st 8jnol pallejeld syl

STABR(Q oMy

suoljejuasaidel usjum exewW 0} pasu | aJaum
pue Jo||1ouno) se Aloedes Aw Ul puspe

| sBuneaw o1gnd Jo [1ouNcD AJunwiwo)

ay) Jo sbBuypeaul je 8joA pue sjedisiued o]

"8snoy Jno Jesu pue| Jno Jaao Buissed Ajqissod suoiid

salARQ Unpy

aaho|dwa

SE 8104 AW U} S3|BAA S80/N0SaY |BJMEN

UM pue Alejasoss se ol Au Ul uoljeloossy
Bunbuy ay) wolyynm ucneylessidsl Jo
sBuljesw Aue o) uonesuadsip jsenbal osje |
"suoljejuasaldal usyum Sxew o} pesu | aisym
pue Jojjiouno) se Apoeded Aw ) pusype

| sBunesuw o1ignd Jo ‘IoUNOY AjluNWwLoD

8y} jo sbunesaw e ajoA pue ejedidiled o

"SUOJA4 oU) Moddns 1o asoddo

0} Ao1jod B Ulim JN0 SLI0D JOU SABL M 184 JO SE pue SBjEAA
$82JN0SSY [BJNJEN JOJ YJom | Alleuld { snossbBuep aq pinom

SiY} pue AlOLI}08|9 1oNPUOS SpoJ Buiysl) eiql) uogieo ‘imA} sy}
Buoje BuioB suojAd sy Juem Jou op am pue uoneossy BulBuy
ojlopue| Jo Alejaioas We | "¢ 104 WMD) Ul esnoy Aw puiyaq pjai
ay} ybnouyy seob g enol sjqissod "z ‘ojispioueiy Ut Buipjoyjjews
sjuated Aw ybnouy) ob suojAd sy; Jo | 8jnol ajgissod |

s8lneq Pely

1senbay uonesuadsi

ysalayu) Jo adAy

ojHIounog JO sWepny

[19UNO0YH AJIUNWILIOY W[k pue oplepJouep
aWaYIg UoROBUUOY PUS Ys AMmo) ABlauz ajng - }saiajul Jo suoljese|daq



This page is intentionally left blank



STANDARDS COMMITTEE

16™ JANUARY 2024

Agenda Iltem 5

DISPENSATION APPLICATION BY COUNCILLOR PETER COMLEY

Purpose:

To consider the application and determine whether to grant dispensation

To consider and comment on the following issues:

To decide whether to grant the dispensation application

Reasons:

Clir Peter Comley a personal and prejudicial interest which would otherwise prevent him

participating in this council business

CABINET

MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Not Applicable

Directorate
Name of Head of Service:

Linda Rees Jones

Report Author:
Robert Edgecombe

Designations:

Head of Administration and Law

Legal Services Manager

Tel Nos.
01267 224012

LRJones@carmarthenshire.q
ov.uk

01267 224018

riedgeco@carmarthenshire.go
v.uk

PN
Cyngor Sir Gar ’
Carmarthenshire
County Council

Page 19


mailto:LRJones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:LRJones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:rjedgeco@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:rjedgeco@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

STANDARDS COMMITTEE
16™ JANUARY 2024

DISPENSATION APPLICATION BY COUNCILLOR PETER COMLEY

A dispensation application has submitted by Councillor Peter Comley of Betws Community
Council to speak and make written representations in relation to council business regarding
Betws RFC.

Councillor Comley would have a personal and prejudicial interest in such business as the
application discloses he holds the position of secretary in Betws RFC.

Councillor Comley seeks dispensation on the following grounds under the Standards
Committees (Grant of Dispensations)(Wales) Regulations 2001

Regulation 2(f) — the participation of the member in the business to which the interest relates is
justified by the members particular role or expertise.

Regulation 2(h) — the business which is to be considered relates to the finances or property of a
voluntary organisation of whose management committee or board the member is a member
otherwise than as a representative of the relevant authority and the member has no other
interest in that business provided that any dispensation shall not extend to participation in any
vote with respect to that business.

If the committee is minded to grant the request it will need to determine the duration of the
dispensation.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? | NO

PN
Cyngor Sir Gar ’
Carmarthenshire
County Council

Page 20




IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration and Law

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical

& Disorder Management | Implications Assets

and Issues

Equalities

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE
CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: LRJones Head of Administration and Law

1. Scrutiny Committee — not applicable

2.Local Member(s) - not applicable

3.Community / Town Council - not applicable

4.Relevant Partners - not applicable

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations - not applicable

CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO N/A
HOLDER(S) AWARE/CONSULTED

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

There are none.

PN
Cyngor Sir Gar ’
Carmarthenshire
County Council

Page 21




This page is intentionally left blank



APPLICATION TO THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE
FOR DISPENSATION
Please note that each section MUST be completed. Please refer to the attached
Guidance Notes when completing the form.

1. YQUR DETAILS

Your full name: Peter Comley

Name of your Council: Betws Community Council

Your address and postcode: 24 Heol Y Felin, Betws, SA18 2HL

Contact telephone number(s): 01269 596508

Email address: peter.comley52@gmail.com

2. DETAILS OF YOUR INTEREST

Page 23
Page 1 of 6



What is the matter under consideration?

a)Payment of Rent by Betws RFC to Betws Community Council this has been a bone of
contention between both parties for many years with frequent non-payment.

This matter needs to be resolved to the benefit of both parties with the forthcoming meetings
within the Community Council meeting/s format and a separate meeting/s with both sides
discussing with the intention of drawing a line and making a fresh start and move forward for the
benefit of the community. With an issue between Betws RFC and the third party whereby a new
lease for the rugby field was required which without it the RFC could not seek funding and
informed Betws Community Council in the 12 October 2022 monthly meeting at point 8 b)
whereby “It was propsosed that no payment for current rent owed is sought until such
time as the lease is resolved. Council will revisit the rent charges at that point.”

The lease has now been signed and rent payments owed from September 2022 and March
2023 should now be paid to the Community Council as these payments go towards the upkeep
of the children’s playground and green area.

b) Also, there is a longstanding legal issue between Betws Community Council and a third party
regarding a land issue which involves the village green, Heol Y Felin Playground and RFC/car
park areas this is leased to Betws RFC which are held in trust by the Community Council on
behalf of the community (Deeds show land given to the community in 1947 and includes a trust
deed). It was hoped that this issue would have ended last year however, the other side are slow
in responding to the Council which has delayed procedures considerably.

c)The solicitor, Peter Comley and the clerk between them have all the information relating to the :
issues and it is of benefit to Council that Councillor Comley is allowed to speak and give

background and other relevant information as required in relation to the above matters in order
that Council can make decisions as required.

d) The management status of Betws RFC changed during 2012 whereby they no longer hold a
trust as per the lease that was signed that same year. The RFC failed to inform Betws
Community Council of this change. They have now been requested to submit a fresh application

- of consent see minutes of monthly meeting held on14 June 2023 at point 11 (extract below in
italics).

.. 11. Exempt Matters — Betws RFC point 14, 15 and 3.11.3 on lease and letter attached from

Betws RFC and email from Peter Comley in his capacity as Secretary of Betws RFC. Reply from
Solicitor regarding the Land Issue and Betws RFC lease.

The various documents were NOTED by members with the Community Council waiting for an
application from Betws RFC as per email sent to him after a telephone conversation with the
clerk on 2 June 2023 whereby the solicitor has advised that:

If the rugby club want to make a fresh application for consent they can do so and we will advise you as
to whether that consent can be provided.

Betws Community Council will wait for Betws RFC to provide them with a fresh application as
advised by the solicitor and the content of the email sent to Peter Comley as secretary of Betws
RFC on 2 June 2023.

Page 24
Page 2 of 6




What is your interest in the above matter?

Under 10 (2) (a)

e A contract made between the Council and you
e Any land,lease or license in which you have an interest

» A public body or other association in which you have membership or hold a
position of general control or management.

I am the Secretary, Treasurer and Licensee for Betws RFC and a member of the committee.

When will the above matter be considered?

This will be discussed in several meetings in the coming months with the Community Council
and separate meetings with the Community Council and RFC committee.

Are you applying for disbensation to:

Speak only: X[] Speak and vote: [ ]
Make written Exercise Executive
Representations X[ ] Powers 1

3. leOUNDS FOR DISPENSATION

Regulations issued by the National Assembly for Wales prescribe the circumstances in which
the Standards Committee may grant a dispensation. These grounds for granting a dispensation
are summarised below and are set out in full in the attached guidance notes. On which of the

following grounds do you believe that a dispensation should be granted in this case? Please tick
the appropriate box(es).

- at least half of the members considering the business has an interest [ ]

« my inability to participate would upset the political balance of the meeting to such an [ ]
extent that the outcome would be likely to be affected:;

- my participation would not damage public confidence D

- the interest is common to me and a significant proportion of the general public; L]

My participation in the business is justified by my particular role or expertise; X[ ]

« the business is to be considered by an overview and scrutiny committee and my []
interest is not a pecuniary interest;

» the business relates to the finances or property of a voluntary organisation of whose X1
management committee or board | am a member and | have no other interest

- itis appropriate to do so in all the circumstances where not otherwise possible to {1
make reasonable adjustments to accommodate a person’s disability

Page 25

Page 3 of 6



4. INFORMATION IN SUPPORT OF YOUR APPLICATION

Please set out below the reasons why you consider that the Standards Committee should grant
a dispensation in this case:

(Please note that failure to complete this section will result in the application form being
returned to you)

Please find below in italics a recent letter which | sent to Betws Community Council regarding
the longstanding issues between Betws RFC and Betws Community Council. The Clerk is in the
process of compiling the facts and supporting documentation regarding the issues and will
present once collated to the Members of the Community Council in a separate meeting. The
Councillors will no doubt have questions that will come from reading the report and documents.

A solicitor’s advice may well be sought for some aspects of the issues as a significant amount of
money has been spent when the lease was drawn up and signed in April 2012 and with the
ongoing issues since which include non-payment of rent. The First issues becoming apparent in
a meeting of the Community Council on 20" February 2013, a letter dated 14® March 2014 sent
by the Clerk regarding rent arrears, no rent indexation was implemented by the Community
Council in 2017 with the next review being 2022, the rent had been agreed via both parties
using a jointly appointed surveyor in 2012. Further rent arrears occurred in 2017 and were not

paid up until October and November 2019 after letters being sent by Betws Community Council
solicitors. ’

Betws RFC have not paid the rent which is due in advance each March (£500) and September
(£500) since March 2020 due to the Coronavirus Pandemic. This £2,000 of outstanding rent was
agreed to be wiped in the 27 April 2022 meeting at point

£500 rent payment due 25 March 2022 which was paid by Betws RFC Betws Community
Council meeting minutes of 27 April 2022 point 6 a) refer to this payment being made and
further discussion on the issues with the third party at point 10.

However, in the 12 October 2022 monthly meeting at point 8 b) “It was propsosed that no
payment for current rent owed is sought until such time as the lease is resolved. Council
will revisit the rent charges at that point.” Therefore, the 25 September 2022 rent payment
and the 25 March 2023 rent payments of £500 each have not been paid.

The rugby field lease with the third party has been signed recently (April/May 2023) therefore
Betws Community Council need to seek payment from Betws RFC so that the rent payments
are brought back in line. There has been a request from a member of the community for goal
posts to be placed at the village green and the outstanding rent payments may go towards the
purchase for this project for the community.

The Councillors and the Committee are now in a position where they are prepared to come to
an agreement and draw a line in order to make a fresh start for the benefit of the local
community with options needing to be debated by both parties.

A lot of time and money has been wasted on both sides that could be put to better use.

Page 26
Page 4 of 6




(please continue on a separate sheet if necessary) l

il FQQU—QA% ko C\M?vaso.\rmv\ h enakle me o SF@‘R

a bﬁ%t{ Bl e A nattes elaking '
the Councld.

and bk P*efﬂ-ov\’( P vk w itk d
fo oageing  1ssucs vt L-Q‘ff?%f\k amd genesal

or\qo)v\q NN 3T e Lovank % be Ho h'@'a.

T 18 @& QW O‘\\»\ C\?%U%hom uf\?L I Nc\"&s
% dajt_o oA, QAWM maktes NQQO&W\Q o HJCAOB

e Gomlany,

Sec_,\-ekc\M
TresavoeS
Clwlo Ry Bekcos K b

| confirm that the information provided on this form is true to the best of my knowledge. | agree
that this application and all the information contained within it may form part of a public report to
the Standards Committee. | request a dispensation in respect of the above matter.

signed: | ¥+ D. Comlen, Date: | /& /9. | Q023

Please return this form to the Monitoring Officer, Chief Executive’s Department, Carmarthenshire County
Council, County Hall, Carmarthen, SA31 1JP.

Guidance notes
(1) Please read through the Code of Conduct and decide which of the paragraphs is most

appropriate to your case. Brief details of the relevant paragraphs are noted in the table
below. If you are unsure, please contact the Monitoring Officer for advice.

Para. Type of personal interest
10(2)(a)  Council business which relates to or is likely to affect:

« your employment or business Page 27
« your employer, firm or compaﬁ?ge 5of6

« a contract made between the Council and vou




(2) The Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations)(Wales) Regulations 2001(as amended)
state that a Standards Committee may grant dispensations where:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

()

no fewer than half of the members of the relevant authority or of a committee of the
authority (as the case may be) by which the business is to be considered has an
interest which relates to that business;

no fewer than half of the members of a leader and cabinet executive of the relevant
authority by which the business is to be considered has an interest which relates to that
business and either paragraph (d) or (e) also applies;

in the case of a county or county borough council, the inability of the member to
participate would upset the political balance of the relevant authority or of the committee
of the authority by which the business is to be considered to such an extent that the
outcome would be likely to be affected;

the nature of the member's interest is such that the member's participation in the
business to which the interest relates would not damage public confidence in the
conduct of the relevant authority's business;

the interest is common to the member and a significant proportion of the general public;

the participation of the member in the business to which the interest relates is justified
by the member's particular role or expertise;

the business to which the interest relates is to be considered by an overview and
scrutiny committee of the relevant authority and the member's interest is not a
pecuniary interest;

the business which is to be considered relates to the finances or property of a voluntary
organisation of whose management committee or board the member is a member
otherwise than as a representative of the relevant authority and the member has no
other interest in that business provided that any dispensation shall not extend to
participation in any vote with respect to that business; or

it appears to the committee to be in the interests of the inhabitants of the area of the
relevant authority that the disability should be removed provided that written notification
of the grant of the dispensation is given to the National Assembly for Wales within
seven days in such manner as it may specify.

It is considered appropriate in all the circumstances to do so where not
otherwise possible to make reasonable adjustments to accommodate a persons
disability

Page 28
Page 6 of 6



	Agenda
	3 TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE HELD ON THE 11TH DECEMBER 2023
	4 DISPENSATION APPLICATION BY COUNCILLOR ALED DAVIES, COUNCILLOR ALUN DAVIES, COUNCILLOR ARWEL DAVIES, COUNCILLOR MARK HARRIES, COUNCILLOR ANDREW THOMAS
	Report

	5 DISPENSATION APPLICATION BY COUNCILLOR PETER COMLEY
	Report


